
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        MAY 21, 2012 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / May 7, 2012 

                                                   Council Work Session minutes / May 14, 2012 

 

PROCLAMATION:     Public Works Week  /  May 21-25, 2012 

 

PRESENTATION:    Relay for Life 

 

                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

          Review minutes / May 14
th
  

           

1.) Ordinances: 

a.) Appropriation of Funds: Online Credit Card Donations for Animal Shelter & Library 

   /   Ordinance 2012 -37 

b.) Appropriation of Funds: Library Roof Water Test & Repairs / Ordinance 2012-38 

c.) Appropriation of Funds: Douglas Road Resurfacing to Highway 13 / Ordinance 2012-40 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday  /  Resolution 2012-41 

b.) Declare City Property Surplus /   Resolution 2012-42 

c.) Bid Award: Sod & Hay – Negotiated / Woerner Turf  /  Resolution 2012-44 

      

 

3.) Financial Reports: 

a.) Treasurers Report / April 30, 2012 

b.) Sales & Use Tax Collections / March 31,  2012 

c.) Lodging Tax Collections / March 31, 2012 

d.) Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance / September 30, 2011 

e.) Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance / March 31,2012 

f.) Budget Amendments to date 

g.) General Fund Loan to Recreation 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake        

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware       

          Review minutes / May 9
th
  

             

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese  

          Review minutes May 9
th
  

 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

          Review minutes / April 16
th
   

           

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        MAY 21, 2012                                      PAGE   2 

 
1



 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / May 3
rd

  

 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette       

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway             

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette      

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese      

          Review minutes / March 14
th
  

          Review minutes / May 9
th
  

   

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

            

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
           a.)  Special Events Permit / S.E.E.D,.S. / Mama Mia Cook Off / November 12, 2012 

           b.)  Parade Permit / S.E.E.D.S. / 9
th
 Annual Classic Rock 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run 

           c.)  ABC License / Dragon City / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises) &  

                                                                 060 – Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises) 

     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:              

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  ALDOT: Construction of Directional Turn Lanes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-39 

 

b.)  ALDOT: Resurfacing I-10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-40 

     

c.)  Approve Participation in the State of Alabama Severe Weather 

       Preparedness Tax Holiday for the Year 2012  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-41 

 

d.)  Declare Certain Personal Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-42 

 

f.)   Bid Award: Sod & Hay / Woerner Turf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-43 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

          1
ST

 READ 
a.)   Amend Employee Handbook / Holiday Pay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-34 

 

b.)   Amend Ordinance 2003-32 / Noise Ordinance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-35 

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Personnel & Capital Appropriations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-36 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & 

       Library Donations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-37 

 

 2



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        MAY 21, 2012                                      PAGE   3 

 

 

 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Library Roof Water Test & Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-38 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Douglas Road Resurfacing to Hwy 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-39 

 

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

4



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

5



MAY 7, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Scott. 

 

ABSENT:  John Lake. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek 

Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Adrienne 

Jones, Planning Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance 

Director; James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Vickie Hinman, 

Human Resources Director; Officer Matt Kilcrease, Police Department; Cpl. Tim Birt, Police Department; 

Office Phillip Adams, Police Department; Lrt. Ric Yelding, Police Department; Anne Morris, Reference 

Librarian; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation;  Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent: Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Tonja Young, Library Director;. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the April 16, 2012 council meeting minutes.     

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 PRESENTATION:  March of Dimes / Jennifer Bitner 

 

Ms. Bitner thanked the Mayor and Council for hosting the March of Dimes event.  She appreciated all 

the volunteers that came out to help and is looking forward to next year’s event.  

 

RECOGNIZE:   Bayside Academy Chess Team 

 

Councilwoman Conaway read and presented the proclamation recognizing the Bayside Academy 

Chess Team for winning the State Championship to the team, Mr. Eric Nager, team coach and Ms. 

Sally Jane Kalaris, faculty sponsor. 

 

PRESENTATION:   Huntingdon College / Candi Lake 

 

Mrs. Lake said that they have 21 graduates with Bachelor degrees in business. 

 

6



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Mrs. Lake called the graduates up as Mayor Yelding presented them with the ceremonial pin. 

 

PROCLAMATION:  National Police Week / May 13019, 2012 

 

Mayor Yelding read and presented the proclamation to Chief Carpenter, along with Lt. Ric Yelding, 

Cpl. Tim Birt, Officer Phillip Adams and Officer Matthew Kilcrease. 

 

PROCLAMATION:  National Corrections Officer Week / May 7-12, 2012 

 

Councilman Palumbo read and presented the proclamation to Chief Carpenter and Lt. Ric Yelding. 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

Councilman Boulware reported that ordinances 2012-32 and 2012-33 and resolutions 2012-34 and 

2012-35 have been pulled from the agenda upon the recommendation from ALDOT until they hear 

who the grant recipients are.  The announcement should be no later than May 15
th

.  The ordinances 

and resolutions should, hopefully, be back on the agenda May 21
st
.  Councilman Boulware also 

reported that the city received a plaque from the Baldwin County Humane Society for the city’s help 

and support of their cause.   He reported that the next meeting will be May 14
th

 in the Executive 

Conference room at 4:00 p.m. 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The minutes for the April; 9
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be May 9
th

. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be May 9
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The March 19
th

 minutes are in the packet along with the April 6
th

 Beautification minutes. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

Mrs. Jones said a motion is needed to appoint Mr. Larry Cooke to fill Tony Felts supernumerary 

position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to appoint Mr. Larry Cooke to the Board of Zoning Adjustments to fill 

the supernumerary position vacated by Mr. Tony Felts.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE   ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

She mentioned that Jeri Hargiss had also resigned from the board, and asked council to appoint alternate Jim 

Moss to her position. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to appoint Mr. Jim Moss to fill the position vacated by Ms. Jeri 

Hargiss.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Mrs. Jones stated that they now need another supernumerary appointment specifically from Hwy. 181 around 

Dunmore and Oldfield subdivisions. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The minutes for the April 23
rd

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 
No report. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

Councilman Palumbo stated that the board will meet Thursday at 4:00 p.m.  Anne Morris, Reference Librarian, 

stated that they will host a local author, August Palumbo, on May17
th
 at 6:00 p.m.  The name of his book is 

Assassin Hunter. The Summer Reading Program will be starting up for children and adults. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

Set a Public Hearing date of June 4, 2012 to consider:   

 

a.) Amendment to the Land Use Ordinance / Landscaping Provisions / 19-8 (b)  

b.) Amendment to the Land Use Ordinance / Communications Tower Provisions / Add Section 32-3(d)(3)(i) 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing for June 4, 2012 to consider: 

 

a.) Amendment to the Land Use Ordinance / Landscaping Provisions / 19-8  

b.) Amendment to the Land Use Ordinance / Communications Tower Provisions / Add Section 32-3(d)(3)(i) 

 

Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

The Site Preview meeting will be May 16
th

 and the regular Planning Commission meeting will be May 

21
st
. 

 

 

 

8



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

The board will meet Wednesday at 6:30 p.m. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The minutes for the April 4
th

 and April 24
th

 meeting are in the packet.    

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

    B.  City Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

C. Department Head Comments: 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that Brown Bag by the Bay will be Thursday at 

Mayday Park.  Mobile Soccer Club will be at Trione this weekend, and Relay for Life is Friday at 

Jubilee Stadium. 

 

Councilman Palumbo reported that there were 18 Lacrosse teams at Trione last weekend from five (5) 

states, and that he heard favorable comments on the facilities.  He said that these people stayed at 

hotels and ate at restaurants. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resource Director – reported that there was an Account Tech position 

available that will close out tomorrow, and so far they have received 70 applications. 

 

Christine Ciancetta – Deputy Finance Director - reported that she has received pricing for the use of 

credit cards, and as soon as she presents the information to the Finance Committee then they can move 

forward with implementing the use of credit cards at the Animal Shelter and Library.  She said they 

are closing out FY11, and will be presenting it to the Mayor. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director -   reported that Wednesday, May 2, 2012 the City of 

Daphne experienced a significant rain event.  The official gauges ranged from 8.28 at HMR Engineers, 

8.4 at City Hall and 9.47 at the D’Olive Creek Watershed with the most intense rainfall between 

approximately the hours of 7:30 - 10:30 p.m. on that Wednesday evening. Probably this will come up 

to be a two (2) to four (4) percent chance of return rainfall event which is a significant rainfall.  At this 

point in time they have been dealing with 30 plus call in’s or city reported flooding related issues, and 

they have all those under review.  Some have been addressed, some of them are in the process of being 

addressed and some of them are still in the fact finding phase.  In most cases the majority of the 

drainage systems did not experience failures they experienced an overwhelming of the flow that was 

demanded of them at a particular period of time.  Traditionally, most systems are designed to handle a 

25 year flow event, and looking that they are trending toward a 50 year event for a portion of that time 

frame they just could not handle the volume they were presented with, however, a small percentage of 

the issues were related to either maintenance, debris clogging inlet or a culvert end or an area that has 

just shown its age, and they are structurally addressing those problems as well.  There has been noted  

9



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

private property damage due the rainfall event, there has been significant residential flooding on 

Nicole Place and Vista Circle which has, unfortunately, had a history of that.  His request to citizens is 

that citizens are the best scouts in the field, if they see a problem call it in even if it is minor so that 

they can investigate it, because a small hole can become a very big hole very quickly during a rainfall 

event.  He wanted to give praise where praise is due.  He said the Public Works forces were out until 

4:00 a.m. Thursday morning on May 3
rd

, and Fire and Police were by their side the whole time giving 

them support and coverage manning and closing roads until they could get there with barricades, and 

he cannot say enough about the dedication and professionalism of the city’s Fire and Police officers 

out there in the field, and to have them have your back is a comfortable feeling when it feels like the 

ground is sinking out from beneath you.  He appreciates the Fire and Police and the support that they 

give.  The Public Works folks came out on the evening hours of May 2
nd

 and stayed until the early 

morning hours of May 3
rd

 he appreciates what they did as well.  One of the biggest issues is that 

sometimes they have citizens that have suffered damage, and they don’t know where to turn, the city 

does have a process that involves the city clerk, and they will get the information out there. Citizens 

need to document the damage, and keep track if they spent money to address it or if they have 

estimates, because the city does have insurance carriers that handle these types of things. The Public 

Works Department or the City Clerk’s office is not claims adjusters, and they do not validate insurance 

claims, but the city does facilitate that process.  In many cases the issue was that the systems just could 

not handle it, and it was not a failure of the system it was just a lot of rain in a short period of time.  He 

spent the afternoon out in the field investigating, and they have the city engineers involved as well and 

are getting the issues addressed Mr. Johnson reported that the dedication of Patriots Point will be May 

25
th

 at 10:30, and would like all the elected officials to attend.  He also invited council to Public 

Works Day Wednesday, May 23
rd

 at Lott Park.  

 

Councilman Palumbo asked if council could get an update at the Work Session or at the next council 

meeting regarding Mr. Olds and May Day Park. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that there is movement in that area right now, and they have been working behind 

the scenes to accomplish what council has asked them to do. 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Willie Robison -  spoke regarding the National Day of Prayer celebration at city hall.  He 

reminded everyone of the return flight for the “Honor Flight”.  The last flight will be in September. 

 

Mrs. Pauline Ouellette – Madison Place – thanked Mr. Johnson, Mayor Yelding and John Lake for 

having the meeting with the residents regarding the pit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 
a.)  Bid Award:  Main Street Resurfacing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-34 

 

b.)  Bid Award: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-35 

     

c.)  Set 2
nd

 Public Hearing for 2012 International Building Codes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-36 

 

d.)  Set 2
nd

 Public Hearing for 2012 International Fire Code. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-37 

 

e.)   Authorize Application for Recreational Trails Grant / 

       Connect Westside of US Hwy 98 to Gator Alley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-38 

 

 

Resolutions 2012-34 and 2012-35 were pulled from the agenda earlier in the meeting. 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-36, 2012-37, and 

2012-38.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-36 and 2012-37.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED     
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Resolution 2012-38.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

         2
ND

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Assistance to Firefighters Grant Award. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-30 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Profit Road Extension & Lake Forest: 

       Ridgewood Drive / Phase II: For Design & Engineering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-31 

       

 

11



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
c.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Main Street Resurfacing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-32 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-33 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to waive the reading of Ordinances 2012-30 and 2012-31.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED              

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Ordinance 2012-30.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED             

          

                  

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Ordinance 2012-31.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Ordinances 2012-32 and 2012-33 were pulled from the agenda earlier in the meeting. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Yelding thanked those that took part in the Mayor’s Prayer Breakfast at the Grand Hotel.  He said 

that he told those at the breakfast that he had a well-oiled machine that worked tremendously well, and he 

wanted to reaffirm that tonight. 

 

Councilwoman Scott said that he noticed that a lot of people brought tents to the softball tournament, and 

he feels that they should have some kind of pavilion at Trione, and he hopes the Recreation Board is looking 

into that and will bring a recommendation in the future, because he feels they need some kind of protection 

out there.  He also complimented the Mayor on his presentation at the Prayer Breakfast saying he did an 

excellent job and represented the city extremely well to the point that the speaker even used his phrase of a 

well-oiled machine or well-oiled team as part of his presentation.  

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that sometimes the wheel turns slowly, but some time ago council passed a 

resolution urging Congressman Bonner to support House Resolution 376 in this session of congress which is 

to recognize Italian Heritage month during October, and his office advised him that he is not only going to 

support the bill, but this week he is signing on as a co-sponsor, and he will be one (1) of 15 co-sponsors. 

 

 

12



MAY 7, 2012  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

Council President Barnette commended the Mayor and his communication, Mr. Johnson and his team, 

Police and Fire for the work they did during the rain event Wednesday and early Thursday morning. Eight 

and a half (8.5) to nine (9) inches is a heck of a rain event no matter how you take it, and if you look at the 

spread sheet just the way that Mr. Johnson has calculated all the damage and problems and presented that to 

council so that council would be aware of what happened she thinks it is wonderful professionalism, and she 

certainly appreciates that kind of information being shared with the council.  She reminded folks that the 

Relay for Life is Friday, and that raffle tickets are still being sold for televisions and Nooks so everyone can 

still get their tickets for that, and she encouraged everyone to attend. 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                         

                             
________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC  

                

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President  

13



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; 

Ron Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Yelding; David Cohen, City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay 

Ross, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Lt. Ric Yelding. 

 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. PRESENTATION:  RETAIL STRATEGIES / ROBERT JOLLY / CHUCK BRANCH 

 

Mr. Jolly and Mr. Branch gave the presentation.  They partner with communities to determine 

opportunities for new retail businesses to locate in the community.  The benefit is that there are 23 

brokers that interact with companies all day long.  They ask for a three (3) year engagement, because 

it takes time to compile all the information, at a cost of $30,000 the first year and the second and 

third years will be half that cost.  They will be submitting a proposal to council in the future. 

 

 

2. REPORT FROM PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR: 

 

1.) Land Swap with Dr. Booth 

This was pulled from the agenda in order to have time to look at the storm water issues and 

watershed implications. 

 

2.)  Update on status, operation & Plans for the City of Daphne Solid Waste Tallent Lane    

 Facility  

Mr. Johnson stated that the Tallent Lane property was vacated April 30, 2012.  He said they met 

with the neighbors, and 37 people attended from the surrounding area.  (Mr. Johnson handed out a 

packet of information to council, and is spread out upon these minutes) Mayor Yelding, Councilman 

Lake and key staff members were present for the meeting.  The goal is to fill up the hole, and they 

will be diverting inert materials to the pit in that effort.  Mr. Johnson wants to apply for a 

Construction and Demolition Permit to allow the city to collect and dispose of construction debris 

that is generated in the city and dump them at the site.  Before the site could be used for that purpose 

the city would have to come into compliance with ADEM.  The cost of taking this debris to the 

landfill is around $200,000 a year, so this would save the city money on gas, fees and wear and tear 

on the trucks.  The citizens were concerned about noise of the trucks, but in talking with the land 

owners right next to the pit that has not been a problem.   They are looking at safety issues and have 

put up some privacy fencing and will be putting up more along with metal fencing with barbed wire, 

and will be planting trees. 

 

Council President Barnette stated for the record that this will be for city use only. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that he will work on a resolution that will include that clause. 

 

Councilman Palumbo asked how long it would take to fill up the hole. 

14



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

Mr. Johnson said that if it was just based on vegetative inert material, and he did the math, the expert 

that Mr. Ross brought in did a volume calculation, and he said there were 1,000,500 cubic yards of 

air space in the pit, and at the rate they are putting debris in it right now it would take approximately 

37 years, but if they get the C&D permit it would cut it in half. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that he would like council to consider allowing contractors to put trees 

that they cut down during preparation for construction of houses in the pit. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that he would not be opposed to entertain that if the council was willing.  He thinks 

the city would have to have some requirements like being a certified operator, have a city business 

license etc., and be preapproved to have access.  He said would you charge them or put that as an 

objective to fill the hole, those are things council would have to decide. 

 

Mayor Yelding said his only concern about this would be when they initially took over the pit it was 

because the city had so many complaints about heavy equipment, noise, dust and trucks coming in 

and out, and the city eventually had to pay money for the pit, and they promised the folks up there to 

end all this, and to allow anything other than the city to come in and out of there would not be right, 

they were promised that it would be used strictly by the city, and to allow tree companies to come in 

and out of there all day long they will be right back where they started.  The city owes that to them 

to try to keep the noise and traffic down, and they do not need to get greedy and try to fill the hole up 

too fast, and go against what they said that they were going to do. 

 

3.)  CIAP Grant for Stream Restoration / Proposal for Baldwin County Commission   

       Consideration 

Mr. Johnson gave a brief history on this saying that somewhere in late 2009 Ashley Campbell was 

requested by the county to submit applications for CIAP funding.  CIAP is specifically for 

environmentally related projects that improve water quality.  At that time she had gotten other 

funding sources for two (2) stream restoration projects, and one of them being off County Road 13 

on the utility easement on the east side, and the amount of money she has only allowed for certain 

segment of the stream to be completed, and there was some additional head cutting further upstream. 

So she submitted it as a Tier I request, and at that time there was about 500 feet of channel feed of 

degradation of the stream. Also, they like a number one plan and a backup plan, and the backup plan 

was a Tier II project which is a head cut on an unnamed tributary of Tiawassee Creek and upstream 

of the boxwood culverts on Greenwood Court.  The headwaters come out of that undeveloped land 

between the Estates of Tiawassee and Pollard Road and flows to the north and eventually comes 

under the boxwood culvert on Greenwood.  At some point in time the county had some changes in 

2010 where they turned their environmental department on its head, and then pretty much eliminated 

it, and got into some decision making that they were going to pursue some property up at Live Oak 

Landing, and that they wanted to keep all the CIAP money in reserve for such things, and they put 

the other projects on ice.  In the meanwhile, the state agency, the Alabama Department of 

Conservation and Natural Resources, basically went through their due diligence process, and 

basically, determined that both of the submitted projects did meet qualification for CIAP funding, 

and  endorsed the Tier I project.  Then the county came back and said listen we have all our deals 

done and there is money left so go ahead and submit your project again.  They went back and visited  

 

15



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

both projects, and the Tier I project had gone from about 500 feet to about 1,100 feet, and also 

advanced to another reach of the tributary.  Based upon cost estimates based on what it had cost to 

do the other stream restoration they came to the conclusion that the project had doubled plus a little 

bit to about $525,000 from the original $250,000 from what was originally estimated. Greenwood 

Court had advanced a little bit, but not as rapidly, and they felt that project had advanced from about 

a $250,000 to about $300,000 cost of project.  They shared the information with the county grant 

coordinator, and she came back and said that she thinks their best move would be to ask the 

commission to bump the Tier II to Tier I so that they could get the $250,000 that is designated, and 

get on with it.  Then she came back and said that they have a little bit more CIAP funds that they 

thought, and she felt it would be best to ask for the Tier I as it is now, and ask for the full amount 

which they did.  The commission did not quite understand a couple of key components. One is that 

both of the projects do not lie in the city limits of Daphne, but Daphne is being negatively impacted 

because of the MS4 permitting requirements.  All the streams and sediment are coming into the 

city’s MS4, soon to be a MS2, area, and they have culpability and compliance requirements there.  

The other thing is, just as they have done on the other stream restorations, the city has historically 

matched the grant by absorbing the cost of engineering project management which they were 

pitching at that point in time.  They received comments from the commission like this sounds like a 

Daphne problem why are you up here for a handout again we are tired of it and things of that nature, 

and it was left unresolved.  Basically, they said before they come back the city needs to be able to 

say firmly what skin Daphne has in the game.  He and Ashley do not have that authority to commit 

the council to anything.  The Public Works Committee addressed it and encouraged the Mayor to 

take an initiative role of facilitating a meeting with Commissioner Dorsey. He said the vote was split 

two (2) / two (2) Commissioner James was in favor of doing something, and Commissioner Burt 

feels if it is below I-10 it is not part of his problem.  They had a good meeting with Commissioner 

Dorsey.  He took the time to go out and visit the two (2) projects that they view as model projects, 

and was greatly impressed, and he thinks some positive things will come back.  The CIAP money is 

not really county money it comes from a trust fund generated from oil and gas revenues, but there is 

no doubt the county controls it.  They get to decide how it goes so the city has to have their blessing 

to move forward.  So he and Ashley has worked on it, and they believe that Tier I is the most critical 

project to be addressed.  It is rapidly advancing, and the reality is that most of its head water is in 

undeveloped property which means that you may want to say that development caused it, but it 

could be just the fact that one small part of the development of the area such as Eastern Shore Park 

changed the hydrology just enough that erodible soils just could not handle any more.  Mr. Johnson 

said if council is willing to look into a resolution that they could take with them to the commission 

for example Option I, he calls the preferred option, is the full stream restoration of the full 1,100 feet 

of head cut with construction cost of $437,500, survey, engineering and project management fee 

$87,500 with a total cost of $525,000 with CIAP funds bearing $425,000 and the city bearing 

$100,000. That would be a 81/19 split, basically, with the city bearing 100% engineering plus 

$12,500 construction or they could go back and say that the city will do the engineering and the 

commission do 100% of construction. Option II would be to move the Tier I to Tier II for them to 

release the $250,000 that is already designated for a project in the City of Daphne with the city 

bearing 100% of the engineering and project management cost which would work out to a 83/17 

split.  He is looking for guidance, and if council is willing to put in resolution form their 

commitment to a cost sharing, and CIAP has no cost sharing requirement. 

 

16



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

Council questioned whether they could expend funds on property outside the city limits. 

 

Council President Barnette asked Mr. Ross to research this issue.  She also said that they need to get 

the state in on the project, and maybe they could help them get the funds released for the already 

state approved project. 

 

(Handout is spread out upon these minutes) 

 

 

4.)  ATRIP Update 

Mr. Johnson said that he got a call from ALDOT Friday morning, and they have a major project that 

has been submitted to ATRIP that has made it to the tentative final list, and that is the Main Street 

paving which would be about a $640,000 savings to the city if they are selected.  He is going to ask 

as soon as his friend at ADLOT get to his office on the 15
th

, because he wants to find out right away.  

He asked what it means to be on the tentative final list and he said you are in the beauty pageant and 

they have lined you up.   

 

Council President Barnette said that she spoke to Mr. Johnson about what the viability would be to 

add a bicycle path on Main Street, and he was going to pull up an alternate for that project which is, 

basically, just paint. 

 

Mr. Johnson said that the good news is that they have the quantities in the contract for what one (1) 

foot of five (5) inch white stripe would be, and the only thing they would have to add would be the 

logo with the bicycle guy that goes with the diamond, and they can do that as an add alternate.  The 

biggest thing is that he has to make sure they do not squeeze any lanes too small, but he thinks the 

narrowest part of Main Street is 23 feet which means you have 11½ foot lanes, and you would take 

three (3) feet for a bicycle path, and that would net you nine (9) foot lanes which are not 

unacceptable in an urban environment. 

 

 

 

3. UPGRADE TO ANIMAL SHELTER / COUNCILMAN PALUMBO / LT. RIC YELDING                                                                                                                                                                                               

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that there have not been any improvements to the Animal Shelter while 

he has been on the council.  The building is in dire need of repairs.  He asked Lt. Yelding to work up 

a summary of repairs that are needed and approximate cost. 

 

Lt. Yelding stated that the shelter has received two (2) $20,000 grants and so as many improvements 

as they could including buying a generator for the shelter in case of power outages. (Summary is 

spread out upon these minutes) 

 

 

 

 

 

17



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

5 

 

4. INTERNSHIP PROGRAM / COUNCILMAN PALUMBO 

 

Councilman Palumbo said that his idea is to create a summer or semester internship program for 

students to give them experience or to earn credits.   

 

Mayor Yelding said that he would have the Human Resources Director to check into job 

descriptions, and check with local colleges regarding internship programs.  

 

Councilwoman Conaway said that she will check with the college that she is working with regarding 

the program.  

 

Mayor Yelding asked Councilman Palumbo to come and address the department heads at the staff 

meeting Wednesday regarding the program. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated regarding the Animal Shelter that he would like council to put money in 

the budget to cover the cost of participating in adoption venues away from the city’s. 

 

 

5.  DISCUSS WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

 

1.)  Legal Update 

a.)  May Day Park 

The expert witness has agreed to testify for the city, and he talked with the Mayor about it today and 

he thought it should go to the Public Works Committee first then to the Finance Committee and then 

to council for approval to hire the expert witness to assist the city’s endeavor. 

 

Council President Barnette said that they just had the Finance meeting, and she would hate to see 

them wait another month. 

 

Mayor Yelding said that they have a problem, because council keeps adding things that they are 

going to do, and at one time there was $12 million in reserve, but now it is down to about $10 

million, So they need to talk about where they are going to get the money they are talking about. 

 

Council President Barnette asked if this is covered by the city’s insurance. 

 

Mr. Ross said that AMIC will not cover the city to bring that cause of action, but they may defend  

defend a counter claim. 

 

 

Mayor Yelding said he is not in opposition of it he told Mr. Ross that if they went through that 

process for him and Richard to figure out how much the expert is going to cost, and then take it to 

the Public Works Committee then to Finance look at what it is going to cost the city, and then 

determine where to go to there. 

 

 

18



MAY 14, 2012 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

6 

 

Council President Barnette said that it has taken three (3) to four (4) months to get an expert to come 

back while residents waiting.   

 

Mr. Ross said that they received his letter Thursday. 

 

Council President Barnette said that they have a non-functioning boat ramp where it cost to continue 

to maintain it, because they had construction that did not work. 

 

Mr. Ross said that he would get the letter to the Public Works Committee tomorrow. 

 

Council President Barnette asked if they have found out if the state has an issue with the fact that 

they have a boat ramp that they granted that does not function. 

 

Mr. Cohen said yes they do. 

 

Council President Barnette asked what is the issue? 

 

Mr. Cohen said they want the city to resolve it, to remove it. 

 

Mayor Yelding said that it would be up to council to find the money to pay for the expert witness. 

 

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President      

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

40



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

May 14, 2012 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:01 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior Accountant Suzânne 
Henson, and Accountant Donna Page. 
 
Finance Director Kim Briley was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Bailey Yelding, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Civic Center Director 
Margaret Thigpen, Revenue Officer Heather Gywnn, Building Maintenance Supervisor Frank Barnett, and 
Human Resources Payroll/Benefits Coordinator Sherree Hilburn. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Sherree Hilburn presented the Human Resources activity update. A PT Library Aide was hired April 26, 
2012 and 106 applications have been received and are being reviewed for the Accounting Technician position. 
  
The Safety Committee meeting was held April 25, 2012, and it was discussed that there will be mock fire drills at 
various City facilities during the month of May.  The next Safety Committee meeting will be May 23, 2012 at 10 
a.m. 
 
Ms. Hilburn reported on the following HR department projects:  
  

Benefits Fair scheduled for August 1 – Committee meetings began in April 
 Relay for Life – May 11, 2012 (approximately $4,000 raised) 
 Employee training of FMLA, Worker’s Comp, and Short Term Disability in May and June 
 
 Market Analysis of Job Classifications / Pay Scale.  Ms. Hilburn noted the current pay scale used was 
established from a 2004 market analysis.  A new market analysis of job classifications was presented by Chip 
King, Regional Director of the Archer Co.  Implementation expense of the new pay scale for City employees is 
estimated at less than 1% of total annual salaries.  This includes the salary adjustment for 174 employees and 
does not affect the Public Safety pay scale, since the analysis showed salaries for Police Officers and 
Firefighters are above market average.  Only the salaries for Police Chief, Fire Chief, and Battalion Chief are 
below market average.  (The pay scale for Public Safety was established in April 2007 with a 6.04% annual 
increase.) 
 
Mr. Scott stated that he would like to see us increase the ranges be established if the study recommends it, but 
not have any financial implementation until FY 2013.  Mr. Scott noted that several employees are at the top of 
their ranges and even if step increases were implemented these employees would not ever get an increase so 
re-establishing the pay ranges would address this issue.  Ms. Ciancetta discussed she was working on the pay 
scale information and discussed options that would bring all departments under the same pay scale. 
 
Ms. Hilburn also discussed the requested ordinance amending the City’s Employee Handbook Section 9.3.3 
concerning holiday pay (changing the wording from work day to 8 work hours) and Section 9.4.4.2 covering 
bereavement leave.   41



FINANCE MINUTES - -5-14 (3).doc  2  

 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  April 30, 2012 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $19,534,218.50 was presented.  Ms. Henson noted that the new 2012 
Construction warrant in the amount of $3,008,006.73 is included. It was discussed that the ALDOT 
reimbursement of $470,000 has not yet been received.  
 
Motion by Ms. Conaway to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of April 30, 2012, in the 
amount of $19,534,218.50.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Sales and Use Taxes: March 31, 2012 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for March 2012    -   $1,013,135 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for March 2012    -   $   996,615               
Over Budget (for March)                                  -  $    16,520 
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $63,493  
 
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, March 31, 2012  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $70,058.33 collected for March 2012. 
 
4.  Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance - September 30, 2011 
 
The pre-close Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance at September 30, 2011 was 
presented showing expenditures over revenues for FY 2011 of ($758,296), and an unreserved fund balance of 
$11,429,899. 
 
5. Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance – March 31, 2012 
 
The Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance at March 31, 2012 was 
presented showing expenditures over revenues of ($1,148,127), and an unreserved fund balance of 
$10,281,772.  It was discussed that with the approved budget adjustments not yet spent, the unreserved fund 
balance will be reduced to $8,793,978. 
 
Ms. Ciancetta noted that Ms. Briley does not recommend allowing the unreserved fund balance get below 
$8,000,000.  Mr. Scott stated that he prefers a balance of $9,000,000. Mayor Yelding handed out his 
recommendations to the Committee members for their review for capital expenditures while maintaining an 
$8,000,000 balance. 
 
6.  Schedule of FY 12 Budget Adjustments 
 
A schedule of General Fund FY 12 budget adjustments made to date totaling $2,679,923 was presented.  
 
7.  Report: New Business Licenses – April 2012 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in April was presented.   
 
8.  Bills Paid Reports – April 2012 
 
The April Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2. 
 
 
B.  Appropriation Request  

42



FINANCE MINUTES - -5-14 (3).doc  3  

 
1. Lodging Tax Fund – Recreation Loan 

 
 Daphne Sports Complex – Entrance Road, Phase 1 - $831,207 (including eng/testing $104,900) 

Discussion was made that Recreation should complete repayment of the previous loan they received from 
Lodging tax this fiscal year.  They want to use another $831,207 from Lodging Tax for development of the FY 
2012 Capital Parks & Recreation Improvement Project – Daphne Sports Complex, Phase 1, and repay it from 
their Lodging Tax monthly allocations in the same manner. This covers the construction cost for Phase 1 of 
$726,307, construction engineering inspection & testing of $90,900, and material testing of $14,000. Ms. 
Henson noted that Mr. McKelroy  provided Recreation Board minutes showing a favorable recommendation for 
the project.  Mr. Johnson noted that engineering estimates were over $1,000,000, but the competitive bidding 
resulted in a low bid for construction cost of $726,307.  He discussed that engineering costs are high because 
this is turning woodlands into a developed site, including streets, sewer, water, etc.  He thinks that once this 
project is started, there may be potential for grant applications under the Restore Act. 
 
Three bids were received for this project, with HMR and staff recommending the low bid of $726,307 from SJ&L 
be accepted. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $831,207 
Loan from Lodging Tax to be used for FY 2012 Capital Parks & Recreation 
Improvement Project – Daphne Sports Complex, Phase 1, to be repaid from 
Recreation’s monthly allocation of Lodging Tax funds, and adopt a resolution 
awarding bid 2012-K-DAPHNE SPORTS COMPLEX ENTRANCE ROAD to SJ&L in the 
amount of $726,307.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion carried. 
 

2.  Seven Cent Gas Tax 
 

 Douglas Road Resurfacing - $20,430 
 
It was discussed that this is a qualified expense from the Seven Cent Gas Tax fund.  Costs include $7,172 
construction cost, $12,631.25 cost of asphalt from bid, and $627 material testing.  Five bids were received, with 
the low quote of $7,172 from American Asphalt recommended. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $20,430 
from Seven Cent Gas Tax for Douglas Road Resurfacing, and accept the quote from 
American Asphalt in the amount of $7,172.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.   Motion 
carried. 
 

3.  General Fund 
 

 Honoring Alabama Wounded Warriors, Disabled Veterans, & Families - $250 - $2,000 
 
The request from Perry Hooper Sr. for a donation to the Alabama Wounded Warriors, Disabled Veterans, and 
the families of Fallen Service Members was discussed.  Mayor Yelding noted that all FY 12 contribution funds 
have been used.  Ms. Ciancetta will check the Council member’s budget balances so they can consider 
donating from their funds. 
 

 Search & Rescue – (2) Skiffs – $50,000 - Discuss Ownership  
 
Mr. David Webb with Daphne Search & Rescue presented their request for help with the purchase of two 
Carolina skiffs.  Mr. Boulware asked if BP Oil Spill monies could be used for this.  Mayor Yelding requested Mr. 
Webb provide a list of prioritized equipment they need and he will get with Mr. Chip Martin to submit a re-
appropriation request to use BP monies for these purchases. Ms. Henson noted that there may be a stipulation 
that the City owns the equipment, and the City will provide insurance coverage on it.   
 
 
 
 

43



FINANCE MINUTES - -5-14 (3).doc  4  

 Library Roof Water Test & Repairs - $2,400 
 
Mr. Frank Barnett noted that this repair is needed to stop leaks and address the current problems, but it doesn’t 
make the 14 year old roof whole. 
 
Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$2,400 for Library roof water test and repairs.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
C.  Negotiate Bid: Sod & Hay – Woerner Turf 
 
No bids were received for the Sod & Hay bid, so three vendors were contacted to negotiate pricing.  Only one, 
Woerner Turf, gave a price. (1.45 /yd)  Mr. Johnson noted that we would not want to go outside the County 
because we pick up our own sod to save on delivery costs. 
 
Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution accepting the 
negotiated bid from Woerner Turf for sod at $1.45 /yd.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion 
carried. 
 
D.  State of Alabama: 2012 Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday – July 6– 8, 2012 
 
The Severe Weather Preparedness Tax Holiday scheduled in the State for July 6 – 8, 2012, was discussed. Ms. 
Heather Gywnn noted that items covered include  plywood, batteries, etc., and that individual items cannot cost 
over $1,000. 
 
Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution approving the City’s 
participation in the State of Alabama Severe Weather Preparedness tax holiday 
scheduled for July 6 – 8, 2012.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
E.  Discuss Accepting Online Credit Card Donations for Animal Shelter & Libraries 
 
Mr. Mike Allen with Alpha & Omega Processing presented their proposal to give the Animal Shelter and the 
Library the ability to accept on-line credit card donations.  The initial set-up costs would be $985 for each (total 
$1,970) and then monthly fees based on number of transactions, estimated at $45.63 annually for the Animal 
Shelter, and $109.50 annually for the Library. There is also a $35 monthly service fee for each, which will be 
waived by Alpha & Omega Processing since this is a donation process.   
 
It was discussed that donations should increase if the ability to donate on-line is provided. Ms. Ciancetta 
discussed that this would be the beginning of the City accepting credit cards, and will provide a base which can 
be built upon to develop further credit card usage. 
 
 Motion by Mr. Boulware to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$1,970 for set-up costs for the Animal Shelter and Library to accept on-line credit card 
donations.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 
F.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 

 Metal from Old PW/CD Building behind City Hall 
 Vicon Spreader PS203 

 
 
Motion by Ms. Conaway to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such property. Seconded by 
Mr. Scott.   Motion carried. 
 
 
 

44



FINANCE MINUTES - -5-14 (3).doc  5  

G.  FYI: 1972 GM General Military Surplus Vehicle Returned to the Military 
 
Ms. Henson reported that Military Surplus requested their 1972 GM 2.5 ton truck (vehicle #172) that was being 
used by the Police department be returned.  It was returned to Eglin AFB by Captain Danny Bell on April 23, 
2012. 
 
 
V. Old Business 
 
 
 
VI. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:24 p.m. 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, May 9, 2012 

City Hall Council Chambers 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Kelly Reese       
Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Derek Boulware            
 

I. CALL TO ORDER/MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
Members Present: Kelly Reese and Derek Boulware   

 

Others Present:  David Cohen and Eric Bussey 
  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
None 

 

III.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 
a. Noise Ordinance 

 

A discussion with regard to the noise ordinance with regard to outdoor machines was 
discussed and the need to refine the noise ordinance.  The committee reviewed the draft 

revision by Eric Bussey. 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To amend noise 

ordinance for use of power equipment and recommend to the full City Council. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 
 

b.  Personal Handbook 

 
A discussion with regard to sick leave and bereavement leave in the personal handbook 

ensued.  The committee reviewed the draft revision by Eric Bussey. 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To amend the 

Personal Handbook for sick leave and bereavement and recommend to the full City 

Council. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
c. Any other actions or discussions deemed necessary for the Ordinance Committee to               

consider. 

 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

None 

V.   ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Mr. Boulware  Seconded by Mr. Reese To adjourn at 6:15 

P.M. 

 

ALL IN FAVOR   NONE OPPOSED  MOTION CARRIED 144



 

145



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on April 16, 2012  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The April meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilwoman Cathy 

Barnette, Councilman John Lake, Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra 

Cushway-PW Administrative Assistant, Scott Hutchinson-HMR, Jaye Robertson-

HMR, Randy Davis–Volkert, Steve Commander–Volkert, Ashley Campbell-Daphne 

Environmental/Erosion, Dorothy Morrison-DBC, Debbie Crigler-Resident, Andy 

Bobe-Preble Rish, John Avent-Preble Rish 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – March reports reviewed.   

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – March & YTD reports reviewed. Police routine 

maintenance noted as being high.  Richard Johnson to find out why Mowing Department was 

so high.  The routine maintenance in Mowing included the preparation of all departmental 

mowers for the mowing season. 

C. Public Participation – Debbie Crigler regarding Jackson Square resurfacing.  Mrs. Crigler 

noted that the streets in Jackson Square subdivision are City owned streets and since Main 

Street is going to be resurfaced, she would like to see the streets of her subdivision resurfaced 

as well.  Richard Johnson has visited the subdivision and stated that Public Works is in the 

process of evaluating all of the streets in the City of Daphne.  All streets will be rated 

according to its condition.  It was agreed that the resurfacing of the Jackson Oaks subdivision 

would be delayed pending the results of the assessment of all City streets. 

D. Public Participation – John Avent of Peble Rish Engineering updated the committee 

regarding the Engineering firm.  Their primary focus in the past has been residential and 

commercial.  Looking to move more into the Public Sector.  Merged with Peble Rish in April 

2011.  It is a small firm.  They conduct engineering, planning, and surveys. They worked on 

the Baldwin Beach Express and have additional resources in Florida.  They are currently 

working with other municipalities in Baldwin County. 

E. Correspondence – Dwayne Coley regarding appreciation of participation in Relay for Life. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – March 19, 2012.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the 

minutes; motion seconded by Councilman Lake. 

B. Mosquito Reports – None Submitted.  Spraying Permit received today.  Richard reported that 

we must be able to justify any spraying.  The department has a plan in place and Ashley 

Campbell is assisting.  Councilwoman Barnette asked what the protocol would be now and 

what is the expected response.  Richard stated that a flyer will be going out in all Riviera 

Utility bills soon that will explain the new procedure.  When a request comes in for mosquito 

spraying, a work order is generated.  The area will then be evaluated by mosquito control.  

Aerial spraying is still available.   
C. Street Sweeper Reports – March reports reviewed.  It was noted that Park City was swept. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Daphne Avenue Median Landscape.  CR 64 and Hwy 98 completed.  Councilman Lake 

commented that Daphne Avenue is the gateway /connection to Old Towne Daphne.  HMR has 

developed plans for medians.  This needs to go before the Planning Commission.  Richard will 

send the plans to the Committee members.  Councilman Lake asked if we can look at the same 

type of idea for Hwy 90 in front of the shopping center.  Motion made by Councilman Lake 146



to proceed in sending plans to Planning Committee.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman 

Barnette. 

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. CIAP – Stream Restoration Discussion.  Richard reported that the Coastal Impact Assistance 

for coastal counties/cities to improve water quality.  Ashley has worked on two projects which 

have been successful.  Handout.  County to entertain Tier 1 projects.  The City will request 

full amount of project.  The county does not feel that there is a problem in Daphne and it is not 

a “County” problem.  Richard said that we have three options:  1) Do nothing, 2) Return and 

ask for full funding with the City paying for Engineering, and 3) Return and ask for the full 

amount.  Councilwoman Barnette stated that they are obligated to distribute funds.  It is her 

understanding that it isn’t the County’s money. Councilman Lake said that this misconception 

needs to be corrected.  The land in question is not inside Daphne city limits.  Ashley noted that 

both projects are Daphne/County.  Councilwoman Conaway asked what the time limit is to 

come back.  Richard responded when we have an answer.  Councilwoman Barnette made a 

motion to move forward with tier 1 and 2, option 2.  Motion seconded by Councilman 

Lake. 

B. Grounds Department – The City of Daphne’s Grounds Department completed the Certified 

Landscape Professional’s certification course and now the City has the most Certified 

Landscape Professionals in the state. 

C. Randall Avenue Sidewalks – Continuing to make progress on sidewalks as weather allows. 

D. Historic Malbis – Richard reported that there continues to be a high volume of property 

damage due to the small alleys in the Historic Malbis subdivision.  Richard talked to property 

management group.  Councilman Lake stated that we need to be consistent in enforcing our 

SW ordinance and if all other subdivisions are required to bring their carts to the front, then 

we should be consistent and require this subdivision comply.  This would greatly reduce 

property damage. Richard to discuss further with Mr. Brooks and Councilman Palumbo and 

report back. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report – Richard stated that he was not concerned with slight dip 

in Recycling this month.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – March 12, 2012. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – April 6, 2012.  Minutes reviewed 

B. Update – Beth Moore (Daphne Study Club) came to the Beautification meeting requesting 

that a sign be put up.  Councilwoman Barnette added that they want the public to be aware 

that know that the courtyard in Old Towne Daphne is open for public use.  She suggested that 

an article be written for the Jubilee Breeze about the courtyard. 

C. Update – KFC landscaping well underway. 

D. Update – Patriots Point Memorial Dedication to be held on May 24th at 10:30 AM at the 

Daphne Civic Center Complex.  The public is invited to this dedication. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from March 26, 2012 Meeting – Meeting cancelled.  

B. Agenda for next meeting to be firmed up. 

 

X. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update – Working to resolve sod issue in Lake Forest.  Have started prep work for 

Whispering Pines and Hwy 98 project.  Expecting it to move as smoothly as the Hwy 98 and 

CR 64 project. 147



 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

C. Next Meeting – May 21, 2012 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 5:57 PM.  

148



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

149



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT REPORT 

MAY 3, 2012 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 5:58 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present Swaney, Robison, Mayhand, Moss, and Lamb arrived at 6:01 p.m. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Approved as written. 

  

 December 1, 2011   

  

4. NEW BUSINESS 

 

Appeal #2012-01 Delorice Hall-Black – Denied. 

 

A request for a Variance has been filed with the City of Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. 

The request, if granted, would allow the replacement of an existing nonconforming manufactured 

home, thereby allowing two primary residences on a one point eighty-five acre parcel. The 

property is located at 1604 Conaway Street, which is zoned R-2, Medium Density, Single Family 

Residential and R-4, High Density, Single & Multi-Family Residential. 

 

Appeal #2012-02 Daphne UT Central Water Treatment Plant- Approved with condition 

that wetland area shall perpetually remain undisturbed. 
 

A request for a Variance has been filed with the City of Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. 

The request, if granted, would allow the expansion of an existing public water treatment facility 

to encroach the front yard setback line twenty-feet in lieu of the required forty-feet, thereby 

establishing a twenty-foot front yard setback. The property is located at 8201 Well Road, which is 

zoned R-1, Low Density, Single Family Residential.  

 

  

5. OLD BUSINESS - None 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT – 7:15 p.m. 

 

 

 

Submitted by P. H. 

150



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
March 14, 2012 

 
 

Members Present:  Doug Dugat, Lisa O’Hara, Frank Pierce and Glenn Vickery 
 
Members Absent:  Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham, Jan Mittemeyer and Kit 
Smith 
 
Advisory Staff:  David McKelroy – Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:36pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Doug Dugat and seconded by Lisa O’Hara to approve the 
November 9, 2011 minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
Al Guarisco, Bill Hegler, Daniel and Tanya Walker attended the meeting and 
spoke for improving the Booce Courts at Lott Park. 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  The addition of Youth Spring 
Soccer, Sunday Sunset Series and the Easter Egg Hunt were discussed. 
 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 1.  Tennis Court Repair     American Tennis Inc is schedule to start the     
      repairs to the tennis courts the week of April 9. 
 
 2.  Bocce Courts     Discussion was held about improving the Bocce    
      Courts.  The board agreed on making the desired improvements. 
 
 3.  New Park Entrance – New Sports Complex     Information was     
      presented to the board regarding the new entrance.  Once cost     
      estimates are received, a determination of what can be next can be   
      made. 
 
Comments from Director 
Director informed Board members that they would be required to file a Statement 
of Economic Interest with the state of Alabama. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:10pm.     
 

151



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
May 9, 2012 

 
 
Members Present:  Doug Dugat, Lisa O’Hara, Frank Pierce and Kit Smith 
 
Members Absent:   Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham and Jan Mittemeyer 
 
Advisory Staff:   Councilman Kelly Reese, Glenn Vickery and David McKelroy, 
Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:40pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Doug Dugat and seconded by Frank Pierce to approve the 
March 14, 2012 minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
None 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  The Sunday Sunset Series and 
increased revenues from spring soccer and concessions were discussed. 
 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 1.  Tennis Court Repairs     Repairs are currently being preformed, should       
       be complete by the end of the week. 
 
 2.  Bocce Courts     Repairs to the courts will be started once the baseball    
      season is complete. 
 

3. New Park Entrance – New Sports Complex 
a. Bid information was presented to the board.  Motion was made    

by Doug Dugat and seconded by Kit Smith to support the   
recommendation of SJ&L, Inc.  HMR’s fees were questioned. 

b. The board discussed the possibility of adding a spray 
ground/splash pad to the park entrance next to the playground.  
Insurance and liability question were discussed with regard to 
the skate park. 

c. Grant possibilities will be pursued for the park entrance. 
 

152



Comments from Director 
David McKelroy and Charlie McDavid, Athletic Coordinator, expressed a need for 
Girls Softball fields.  Currently, girl’s softball is limited to Tuesday and Thursday 
at Trione.  Surrounding cities (Spanish Fort, Robertsdale and Fairhope) all have 
fields’ exclusive for girls’ softball. 
 
Comments from Advisors 
Doug Dugat expressed a need for Recreation Board members to be active. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:31pm.   

153



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

163



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

164



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION 2012-39 

 
ALDOT: Improvements Within the City of Daphne, Alabama:  

Project HISP-0042(521): Construction of Directional Turns & Closing Accesses along US-

98 from D’Olive Creek Bridge to Van Buren Street in Baldwin County 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as City) is desirous of 

having certain improvements within the City Limits of Daphne, in accordance with plans prepared by the 

Alabama Department of Transportation and designated as Project Number HISP-0042(521), Construction 

of Directional Turns & Closing Accesses along US-98 from D'Olive Creek Bridge to Van Buren Street in 

Baldwin County. 

 

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous of 

receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and  

 

WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of America, 

will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and unless the City of Daphne 

will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration. The City of Daphne for the 

purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to its funding 

of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for does hereby pass and adopts the 

following resolution: No parking will be allowed within the project limits. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Daphne that the plans of said project including 

alignment, profile, grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City and which are 

now on file in the office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the location of said project as 

staked out by the Alabama Department of Transportation and as shown by said plans referred to are 

hereby approved and the Alabama Department of Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal 

Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and 

otherwise improving and construction of said project in accordance with said plans. 

 

The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the Alabama Department of 

Transportation the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any existing streets for the 

construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the Alabama Department of 

Transportation to close and barricade the said project and intersecting streets for as long as necessary 

while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and otherwise improved, and hereby agrees that the 

use of any street or highway for parking within an interchange area will not at any time be permitted. 

 

The City hereby further agrees to adopt or pass such legally effective ordinances and/or laws as 

will permanently barricade and/or relocate certain intersecting streets as required by the State and to 

permanently deny or limit access at certain locations as required by the State along said improvements, all 

of which are more specifically stated as follows: No parking will be allowed within the project limits. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City, that for and in consideration of the Alabama 

Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, constructing said 

highway and routing traffic along the same through the City over said project, such City hereby agrees 

with the Alabama Department of Transportation and for the benefit of the Federal Highway 

Administration, that on the above mentioned project the City will not in the future permit encroachments 

upon the right of way; nor will it pass any ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits 

provided for in Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor 

will it permit other than parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing 

of any informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement or other 

markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama Department of Transportation and  

165



 

RESOLUTION 2012-39         ALDOT / D’OLIVE CREEK BRIDGE TO VAN BUREN                      PAGE   2 

 

the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character of such installations. The traffic 

control devices and signs installed during construction, and those installed after completion of this project 

shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

and accepted standards adopted by the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama 

and by the Federal Highway Administration. The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control 

devices deemed necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the 

safe and efficient utilization of the highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 

1975, and all other 

applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of the Alabama Department of 

Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway Administration, prior to installation 

and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and control the same under the provisions of Title 

32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other applicable laws of Alabama. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by this Council: 

 

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or relocated roads that 

are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the jurisdiction of the City. 

 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in this Resolution or Agreement shall in the future be 

made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway Administration. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this the    day of  

  ,2012. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

   

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

 

I, the undersigned, Clerk of the City of Daphne do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of a resolution duly and lawfully adopted by the Council, of the foregoing City, at 

its regular meeting held on the    day of    , 2012, which resolution is on 

file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

Given under my hand and the official seal of such City this     day of   

 , 2012. 

 

              

       David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

 

166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2012-40 

ALDOT: Improvements Made on I-10 Within the City Limits of Daphne, Alabama 
Project Number: IM-IO10(329) Resurfacing I-10 from East End of the Bayway 

Bridge to East of SR-59 in Baldwin County 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as City) is desirous of 

having certain improvements made on 1-10 within the City Limits of Daphne, in accordance with plans 

prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation and designated as Project Number IM-IO10(329), 

Resurfacing 1-10 from east end of the Bayway Bridge to east of SR-59 in Baldwin County. 

WHEREAS, The Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous of 

receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and 

WHEREAS, The Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of America, 

will not participate in any funding for the construction of said project until and unless the City of Daphne 

will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration. The City of Daphne for the 

purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to its funding 

of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for does hereby pass and adopts the 

following resolution: No parking will be allowed within the project limits. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Daphne that the plans of said project including 

alignment, profile, grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City and which are 

now on file in the office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the location of said project as 

staked out by the Alabama Department of Transportation and as shown by said plans referred to are 

hereby approved and the Alabama Department of Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal 

Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and 

otherwise improving and construction of said project in accordance with said plans.  

The City by and through its Council hereby grants to the Alabama Department of Transportation 

the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any existing streets for the construction of said 

project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the Alabama Department of Transportation to close and 

barricade the said project and intersecting streets for as long as necessary while the said project is being 

graded, drained, paved, and otherwise improved, and hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway 

for parking within an interchange area will not at any time be permitted.  

The City hereby further agrees to adopt or pass such legally effective ordinances and/or laws as 

will permanently barricade and/or relocate certain intersecting streets as required by the State and to 

permanently deny or limit access at certain locations as required by the State along said improvements, all 

of which are more specifically stated as follows: No parking will be allowed within the project limits. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City, that for and in consideration of the Alabama 

Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal Highway Administration, constructing said 

highway and/routing traffic along the same through the City over said project, such City hereby agrees 

with the Alabama Department of Transportation and for the benefit of the Federal Highway 

Administration, that on the above mentioned project the City will not in the future permit encroachments 

upon the right of way; nor will it pass any ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits 

provided for in Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor 

will it permit other than parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the placing 

of any informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and pavement or other  

175



RESOLUTION 2012-40                    ALDOT / RESURFACE I-10                             PAGE   2 

markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama Department of Transportation and 

the Federal Highway Administration, of the location, form and character of such installations. The traffic 

control devices and signs installed during construction, and those installed after completion of this project 

shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

and accepted standards adopted by the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama 

and by the Federal Highway Administration. The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control 

devices deemed necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the 

safe and efficient utilization of the highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 

1975, and all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of the 

Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway 

Administration, prior to installation and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and control the 

same under the provisions of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama 1975, and other applicable laws of 

Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by this Council:  

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or relocated roads 

that are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the jurisdiction of the City.  

It is understood and agreed that no changes in this Resolution or Agreement shall in the future be 

made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway Administration. 

THIS RESOLUTION PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this the    day of  

  ,2012. 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

       

ATTEST 

 

 

        

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC        

I, the undersigned, Clerk of the City of Daphne do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of a resolution duly and lawfully adopted by the Council, of the foregoing City, at 

its regular meeting held on the     day of     , 2012, which resolution 

is on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

Given under my hand and the official seal of such City this     day of   

 , 2012. 

             

       David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

176



177



178



179



180



181



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-41           
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 

PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 

SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX HOLIDAY 

FOR THE YEAR 2012 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2012-256 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the payment 

of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX during a period commencing at 

12:01 a.m. on the first Friday in July of each year and ending at twelve midnight the following 

Sunday under the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for the state SEVERE 

WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX holiday. 

 

  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of certain 

covered items from the payment of municipal SEVERE WEATHER PREPAREDNESS TAX for 

the period commencing at 12:01 a.m. Friday, July 6, 2012 and ending at twelve midnight 

Sunday, July 8, 2012 under the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for by Act 

No. 2012-256 and Alabama Department of Revenue Rule 11-51-210(e). 

 

  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

this the _______ day of  _____________, 2012. 

 

 

    _______________________________ 

    Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

    ________________________________ 

    Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

182



RESOLUTION 2012 - 42 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 

    
 
    

       
Metal from Old PW/CD Building behind City Hall 
Vicon Spreader PS203 

 

 
    

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2012. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

       

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

183



RESOLUTION NO.  2012-43 

2012-J-SOD AND HAY 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the SOD AND 
HAY will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, No bids were received and therefore can be negotiated; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the negotiated bid for the SOD AND HAY and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the negotiated bid for the SOD AND HAY be 
awarded to Woerner Turf. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the negotiated bid of Woerner Turf  for unit cost as follows:  
 
      Pickd Up   Delivered          
        Centipede Sod $ 79.520/pallet   /$  90.75 delivered 
       St. Augustine Sod $ 110.00/pallet  / $120.00 delivered 
         Construction Grade Centipede $  68.75/pallet  /  $ 79.75 delivered 
            Roll sod Centipede w/Disposal Core $  43.50/roll     /   $ 49.50 delivered 
         Construction Grade Centipede $  37.50/roll     /   $ 43.50 delivered 
 Pallet - $6.00 or $10.00 Core Deposit – Refundable upon return.     

 
as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2012-J-SOD AND HAY. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of _                _, 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                              
________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                        
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC                                                                  

184



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2012-34 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 9.3.3 AND 9.4.4.2  OF THE CITY’S  

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK  

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that certain revisions to the City of Daphne Employee Handbook are necessary for the proper 

administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions to the Employee Handbook will enable the City to more 

easily facilitate and administer provisions of the Employee Handbook in order to benefit the 

health, safety, and welfare of its employees;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: REVISION TO SECTION 9.3.3 

 

 That Section 9.3.3 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

is replaced as follows: 

 

 9.3.3 Holiday Pay.  All eligible employees will receive holiday pay in lieu of their regular 

pay for all city holidays.  The amount of holiday pay paid to each employee will be based upon an 

eight (8) hour work day.  If an employee is a twelve (12) or twenty four (24) hours shift employee 

and takes the holiday off, the employee will be paid eight (8) hour holiday with the remaining  

hours as vacation, sick, or leave without pay, whichever is applicable.  If a non-exempt employee 

is required to work the holiday, he will receive both holiday pay and pay for the hours he actually 

works.  The pay that he receives for the hours worked will be calculated at his regular rate of pay.  

An exempt employee will not be paid for the hours he works on a holiday, since he is paid a 

salary for accomplishing his assigned job.  However, he may take time off at a later date, with the 

concurrence of his supervisor. 

 

SECTION II: REVISION TO SECTION 9.4.4.2 

 

 That Section 9.4.4.2 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its entirety 

and is replaced as follows: 

 

 9.4.4.2. Bereavement.  Bereavement leave is intended to provide an eligible employee  

185



ORDINANCE 2012-34                    AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK                             PAGE   2 

 

time off with pay for purposes of attending to personal matters associated with the death of a 

close family member and/or for attending a family member’s funeral.  Up to twenty four (24) 

hours of bereavement leave will be granted an employee who has a death in his immediate 

family.  Immediate family is defined as follows:  Spouse, children, parents, grandparents, 

grandchildren, brothers, sisters, or the equivalent relations of the employee’s spouse.  Included 

within the definition of family are those persons who live with the family as a member of the 

family whether related or not.  If additional time off is required beyond the bereavement leave 

days authorized, an employee may request vacation leave or leave without pay.   

 

 SECTION III: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

  

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

                                                   

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR                                        
             

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

186



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2012 – 35 

_______________________________________________________________  

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2003-32 REGULATING NOISE 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2003-32 was approved and adopted December 15, 2003, to 

establish standards to eliminate and reduce unnecessary and excessive noises detrimental to 

individuals and the community in the enjoyment of life, property, and the conduct of 

business; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama, has determined that 

various sections of Ordinance 2003-32 should be amended to eliminate any vagueness and 

ambiguity, and to further promote the enforcement of the aforementioned Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama, has deemed it to be 

within the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Daphne, Alabama, to amend 

Ordinance 2003-32; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama that Section I of Ordinance 2003-32 is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

replaced as the following:   

 

SECTION I:  ILLEGAL NOISES-LOUD, DISTURBING OR UNNECESSARY,    

PROHIBITED 

 

 A. No person shall make, continue or cause to be made or continued any noise 

which either annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace or 

safety of others in the City. It shall also be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to permit 

any such noise to be made in any house or upon any premises owned or possessed by him or 

under his management or control. 

 

 B. The following acts, and the causing thereof, are declared to be in violation of 

this section, but such enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 

 

1.) Horns, signaling, devices, etc.  

 

a.) The sounding of any horn or signal device on any automobile, 

motorcycle, bus or other vehicle, except as a danger warning when 

and as required by ordinances of the City of Daphne or by the Code 

of Alabama; or 

 

b.) The sounding of such signaling device for any period of time 

exceeding that in which the warned person or persons are alerted 

thereto; or 

 

 
 

187



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   2 
 

c)     The use of any such signaling device when traffic is held up for 

any reason; or 

 

d)     The use of any horn, whistle or other device operated by engine 

exhaust. 

 

2.)    Animals, birds, etc. 

 

The keeping of any animal or bird which causes repeated noise which is 

plainly audible to any person inside a commercial, residential, multifamily 

dwelling or public place between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

 

3.)    Stationary non-emergency, signaling devices. 

 

a)    The sounding or permitting the sounding of any signal from any 

stationary bell, chime, siren, whistle or similar device intended primarily 

for non-emergency purposes, from any place, for more than one minute in 

any hourly period. 

 

b) Any such bell, chime and similar device used in conjunction with 

places of religious worship shall be exempt from the operation of this 

provision. 

 

4.)    Exhausts 

 

The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam engine or 

internal combustion engine of any motor boat or motor vehicle except through a 

muffler or other in good working order and in constant operation. The sound 

therefrom such shall not be plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet. 

 

5.)    Fireworks 

 

The explosion of firecrackers, skyrockets, roman candles, pinwheels or 

any other form of fireworks, except the display of fireworks in public parks or     

other open places within the City under a permit issued by the fire marshal 

pursuant to the fire prevention code of the City or as provided in Ordinance No. 

1994-09. 

 

6.)    Loudspeakers, amplifiers, etc. for commercial advertising purpose. 

 

The use, operation or permitting the use or operation of any drum, bell,   

horn, musical, instrument, stereo, loud speaker, amplifier, public address system 

or other instrument or device or the production or reproduction of sound which 

casts sound upon the public streets for the purpose of commercial advertising or  

intending to attract attention to any building, structure, performance, show, sale or 

display of merchandise, or for any other commercial advertising purposes. 

7.)    Radios, stereos, television sets, musical instruments, etc. 

188



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   3 
 

 

a)    The operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any 

device, radio, television, stereo, drum, musical instrument, sound amplifier 

or similar device which produces, reproduces or amplifies sound in such a 

manner as to create any sound or noise which exceed 60 dB [during the 

hours of 10:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.] at any property line within a 

residential district or upon any public street of right-of-way within, or 

bordering upon any residential district within the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; or     

 

b)    The operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any 

device, radio, television, stereo, drum, musical instrument, sound amplifier 

or similar device which produces, reproduces or amplifies sound in such a 

manner as to be plainly audible outside a radius of twenty-five (25) feet to 

any person inside a commercial, residential, multifamily dwelling or 

public place [during the hours of 10:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.].  This 

includes, but is not limited to, any low level rhythmic base component of 

music sufficient to constitute a violation thereof; or 

 

c)    The operation of any device, radio, television, personal stereo, 

cassette player, compact disc player, digitally stored audio or video player, 

musical instrument, sound amplifier or similar device which produces, 

reproduces or amplifies sound by a passenger on a common carrier or by a 

pedestrian on the street without the use of an external ear plug speaker in 

such a manner as to be plainly audible to any person other than the player 

or operator of the devise at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet. 

 

8.)    Unreasonable sound amplification from a vehicle. 

 

a)    The operation or permitting of the operation of any sound 

amplification system which is plainly audible outside a radius of twenty-

five (25) feet when the vehicle is on a public highway or on premises open 

to the public, unless that system is being operated to request assistance or 

warn of a hazardous situation. 

 

b)    This section does not apply to: 

 

i.    Emergency vehicles 

 

ii.    Vehicles operated by utilities 

 

             iii.    Sound systems of vehicles used for advertising in parades, 

political or other, special events or when properly permitted by the 

City Council. 

 

 

 

189



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   4 
 

9.)    Defect in vehicle or load. 

 

The use or operation of any automobile, motorcycle or other vehicle which 

by its physical state of repair, physical state of disrepair or by the manner in 

which it is loaded creates any grating, grinding, rattling or other noise which is 

plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet when the vehicle is on a public 

highway or on premises open to the public. 

 

10.)    Emergency signaling devices. 

 

Sounding or permitting the sounding of any exterior burglar alarm or any 

motor vehicle burglar alarm unless such alarm is automatically terminated within 

fifteen minutes of activation unless there has been an attempted or actual entry of 

the premises or vehicle. 

 

11.)    Domestic power equipment. 

 

a) The operating or permitting the operation out of doors in a residential 

area or area adjacent to a residential area, of any mechanically powered 

saw, sander, drill, grinder, lawn and garden equipment, or similar device, 

between the hour of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. so as to cause a noise 

disturbance across a residential property boundary. 

 

b) For the purposes of this subsection (B)(11), lawn and garden equipment 

shall be defined as any gas or electric powered mower, edger, blower, 

trimmer, tiller, or other, whether commercial or homeowner grade. 

 

12.)    Construction 

 

a)  Any and all activity incidental to the erection, demolition, assembling, 

altering, repairing, installing, or equipping of buildings, structures, roads, 

or appurtenances thereto, including land clearing, grading, excavating and 

filling between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. in a residential area, 

or area adjacent to a residential area, so as to cause a noise disturbance 

across a residential property boundary. 

 

b)   Emergency repair or maintenance of public roads and highways parks, 

sewers, water, electric, gas or telephone systems at any time or any such 

private construction necessary to restore property to a safe condition 

following a public calamity or work required to protect persons or 

property from eminent exposure to danger shall be exempt from the 

operation of this provision. 

 

13.)    Noises near schools, courts, churches or hospitals. 

 

The creation of any noise on any street adjacent to any school, institution 

of learning, church or court which the same is in use, or adjacent to any hospital,  

190



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   5 
 

nursing home or similar facility which is plainly audible within said school, 

institution of learning, church or court which the same is in use, or any hospital, 

nursing home or similar facility, provided that construction signs are displayed in 

such street indication that the same is a school, hospital church or court street and 

specifying the hours and days of which such regulation is to be effective. 

 

C.    The provisions of Section I heretofore shall not apply to: 

 

1.) Any bell or chime from any clock, school or church. 

 

2.) Any siren, whistle, horn or bell used by emergency vehicles or any 

other alarm systems used in case of fire, collision, civil defense, burglary, 

police activity, except as otherwise provided herein. 

 

3.) Any construction equipment utilized in the activities described in 

Section I (B)(12)(a) of this Ordinance and operated upon residential, 

commercial, industrial or public premises during the time period between 

7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.; provided however, that operation of 

construction equipment between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

shall not exceed a sound level of 80 dB when measured at a minimum of 

fifty (50) feet from the noise source, and further provide that such 

equipment shall be equipped with a properly installed muffler in good 

working order. 

 

4.) Any domestic power equipment operated upon any residential, 

commercial, industrial or public premises during the time period between 

7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., provided that such equipment does not exceed a 

sound level of 80 dB when measured at a minimum of Fifty (50) feet from 

the noise source. 

 

5.) Licensed refuge collection vehicles operating during the time period 

between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., provided, however, sound omitted from 

license refuge collection vehicles operated upon or within 150 feet of any 

residential premises between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall not 

be plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet when the vehicle is on 

a public highway or on premises open to the public. 

 

6.)  The emission of sound for the purpose of alarming persons to the 

existence of an emergency; or 

 

7.)    The emission of sound in the performance of emergency work. 

 

D. Except as provided, the Mayor shall have the right to waive any or all of the 

requirements of Section I in cases of emergency where the welfare of persons 

or property may be jeopardized by their strict enforcement or on such special 

occasions as the governing body may determine. Exemptions from the 

requirements of Section I (b)(7)(a) relating to the time periods during which  

191



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   6 
 

radios, phonographs, television sets, musical instruments, etc. may be 

operated and may only be granted: 

 

1) During weekends, legal holidays (or eve thereof), or school vacations;  

    and, 

 

2) After due consideration of the factors set forth in Section I (B)(5). 

 

SECTION II: REAFFIRMATION 

 

 That all other provisions ordinance 2003-32 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION III. SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

         This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this   ____     day of ___________  , 2012. 
                                                                             

 

________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President 

 

     

________________________________ 

                                                                Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 

192



ORDINANCE 2012 - 36 
 
 

Fiscal 2012:  Personnel & Capital Appropriations 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the Mayor 
and City Council have reviewed the financial position of the City and considered 
certain personnel and capital needs not otherwise approved with the adoption of 
the 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, such items are necessary for the City’s operations.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $ 792,288 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for purposes outlined 
by the Mayor and reviewed by the City Council. (Personnel: 174,356; Capital 
617,932)  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

193



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE 2012-37 

 

 

APROPRIATION: WEBSITE INTEGRATION FOR ANIMAL SHELTER AND 

LIBRARY DONATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 

November 21, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of the 

Fiscal Year 2012 Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Animal Shelter and Library accept donations and believe they will receive more 

donations if they have the capability of accepting online credit card donations; and  

 

WHEREAS, in order for the websites to accept online credit card donations, website integration 

is required; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to accept 

credit card donations; and 

 

WHEREAS, an upfront, one-time fee of $ 1,970 is required to modify the websites for the 

acceptance of donations via credit card. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council (the “Council”) of Daphne, 

Alabama (the “City”), that funds in the amount of $1,970 (Animal Shelter $985 & Library $985);  

from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget 

for website integration to accept Animal Shelter and Library credit card donations.  Furthermore, 

the Finance Department is hereby authorized to open a separate bank account for the receipting 

and processing of such online donations. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF _________________, 2012. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

____________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



ORDINANCE 2012 - 38 
 
 

Library Roof Water Test and Repairs Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library has had several issues with the roof leaking during rain 
storms, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the Library to 
maintain and protect the building. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $2,400 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for water testing and 
repair of the Library Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

 Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 

                           
 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

202



ORDINANCE 2012-39 
 
 

Douglas Road Resurfacing to Highway 13 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Douglas Road needs to be resurfaced and Seven Cent Gas Tax funds 
may be used for such purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the project cost is below the bid limit and, therefore, quotes were 
received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low quote for construction was $7,172 from American Asphalt, Inc. 
for a total project cost including materials and material testing of $20,430 
(Construction 7,172 + 13,258 materials & testing). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

1)  Funds in the amount of $20,430 (includes Materials & Material Testing)  from    
the Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part      
of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Douglas Road Resurfacing 
project.  AND 

2)  American Asphalt, Inc. is hereby awarded the contract in the amount of  
     $ 7,172 and the Mayor is authorized to execute the same. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

203


	AGENDA.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - May 7.pdf
	Work Session Minutes - May 14.pdf
	Backup to Work Session Minutes.pdf
	Proclamation - Public Works Week.pdf
	Presentation - Relay for Life.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	FINANCE MINUTES - -5-14 (3).pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Backup to Public Safety Minutes.pdf
	Ordinance Committee May 9 Minutes.pdf
	Public Works Minutes - April 16.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Report.pdf
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES --3-14-12.pdf
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES --5-9-12.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	Permits - Sp Events & Parade - SEEDS.pdf
	ABC License.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-39 - RES - ALDOT - Construction Turn Lanes Van Buren.pdf
	Backup to 2012-39 - RES.pdf
	2012-40 - RES - ALDOT - Resurface I-10.pdf
	Backup to 2012-40 - RES - #1.pdf
	Backup to 2012-40 - RES - #2.pdf
	01
	Saved Views
	PRJNUM
	BRIDGE
	EQUATE
	LENGTH
	PIDBOX
	PRELIM
	DESIGN
	CODE


	04
	05
	06

	2012-41 - RES - Severe Weather ST Holiday 2012.pdf
	2012-42 - RES -  GOVDEALS COM               .pdf
	2012-43 - RES - Sports Complex Entrance Road- 2012.pdf
	2012-44 - RES - SodandHay-Negotiated-2012.pdf
	2012-34 - ORD - EmployeeManualRevisions1 1.pdf
	2012-35 - ORD -  NoiseOrdAmend2 1.pdf
	2012-36 - ORD - Personnel and Capital.pdf
	2012-37 - ORD - Animal Shelter  Library Website Intergration Appropriation (5 11 12).pdf
	Backup to 2012-37 - ORD.pdf
	2012-38 - ORD - Library Roof Water Test  Repair.pdf
	2012-39 - ORD - Sports Complex Entrance Road.pdf
	2012-40 - ORD - Douglas Road Resurfacing-7 Cent.pdf



